- PUBLIC MEETING -
Rockport Select Board
Monday, April 29, 2019 — 7:00 p.m.
Geoffrey C. Parker Meeting Room — Rockport Opera House
Streamed at https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine

AGENDA
. Call Meeting to Order

Please either turn off your cell phones and other electronic devices or set them to mute
while in this meeting room or the hallways. If you need to take or make a phone call,
please step outdoors.

Il.  Public Hearing

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Three (3) of the June 2019 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant (Food Sovereignty Ordinance)

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (4) of the June 2019 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant (Marijuana Cultivation Ordinance)

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (5) of the June 2019 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant (Section 202, Coastal Waters and Harbors Ordinance)

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (6) of the June 2019 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant (Section 503.1, Coastal Waters and Harbors Ordinance)

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (7) of the June 2019 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant (Section 507, Coastal Waters and Harbors Ordinance)

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (8) of the June 2019 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant (Section 601.9, Coastal Waters and Harbors Ordinance)

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (9) of the June 2019 Annual Town
Meeting Warrant (Map 018, Lot 77 Land behind West Rockport Fire Station)

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Ten (10) Approve the design, site
preparation, and construction of a sewer line extension from Sea Light Lane to South
Street along Route 1, including all other expenses reasonably related thereto (the
“Project”);

I1l. Minutes, Meetings and Announcements
a. Approval of the minutes of previous meetings:
> Tuesday, April 16, 2019, meeting of the Select Board

> Tuesday, April 23, 2019, meeting of the Select Board Executive Session

1 Select Board Agenda
April 29, 2019


https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine

VI.

Announcements of upcoming Select Board meeting(s):

> Select Board Meeting with Town Manager Search Committee, Tuesday,
April 301, 2019, Wednesday, May 1%, 2019, in the Richardson Room at the
Town Office

> Regular Select Board Meeting on Monday, May 13%, 2019, 7:00 p.m.,
Geoffrey C. Parker Community Meeting Room, Rockport Opera House, to be
streamed at https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine

Announcements of upcoming Select Board Workshop(s):

> None this meeting
Announcement(s) and/or Training(s):

> None this meeting
Committee Openings:

Application for Committee Service can be found at the Town Office and on the
Town Website: www.town.rockport.me.us

NOTE: If acommittee does not have any vacancies, it may still be possible to apply
to join the committee as an alternate member. Alternate members can attend all
meetings, participate in discussions, but may only vote in the absence of a regular
member. If interested, please check with the town office to see if there are alternate
member spots available for the committee of interest.

> |nvestment Committee — 1 vacant seat

> Zoning Board of Appeals — 1 vacant seat
Agenda Changes

Public Comment — public comment should be directed at issues not under
discussion on this evening’s agenda. Comment from the public will be welcome
prior to each agenda item. Further comment will be granted only by permission
from the Board. All public comment should be brief and to the point.

Town Manager’s Update

Consent Agenda

None this meeting

VI1l. Unfinished Business

Policy discussion on allocating indirect costs to capital projects

VI1Il.New Business

Committee Application(s):
> None this meeting

2 Select Board Agenda
April 29, 2019


https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine
http://www.town.rockport.me.us/

f.

Sign copies of the Annual Town Meeting Warrant for Tuesday June 11, 2019 and
Wednesday June 12, 2019

Vote to sign the Budget Validation Referendum - MSAD #28 and Five Town
CSD Warrant and Notice of Election for Tuesday, June 11, 2019

Discussion regarding an infrastructure bond

Discussion regarding possible workshop dealing with the future of the RES
property

Consideration of the Rockport Public Library bidding process

IX. Wastewater Commissioners

a.

Approve information mailing and letters for sewer extension project

X. Liaison Reports

XIl. Executive Session

a.

Discussion of a Personnel Matter pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(A) (if
needed)

XIl. Adjournment

3 Select Board Agenda
April 29, 2019



TOWN OF ROCKPORT
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
SELECT BOARD
MONDAY, APRIL 29, 2019

GEOFFREY C. PARKER ROOM, ROCKPORT OPERA HOUSE

7:00 P.M.

The Town of Rockport Board of Selectman shall hold a Public Hearing on Monday, April 29,
2019 at 7:00 p.m. at the Rockport Opera House on 6 Central Street, Rockport. To accept public
comment on the following:

Article 3.

Article 4.

Article 5.

Article 6.

Article 7.

Article 8.

Article 9.

Shall an Ordinance entitled “Local Food Sovereignty Ordinance” be enacted?

Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance Limiting Home Cultivation of Marijuana
for Personal Adult Use” be enacted?

Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport Coastal
Waters and Harbor at Section 202 to add a new definition for resident,” be
enacted?

Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport
Coastal Waters and Harbor at Section 503.1 to revise the requirements for
moorings,” be enacted?

Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport Coastal
Waters and Harbor at Section 507 to add winter mooring specifications,” be
enacted?

Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport Coastal
Waters and Harbor at section 601.9 to establish requirements for encapsulated
polystyrene floatation,” be enacted?

To see if the Town will vote to approve the sale of a portion of Town owned land
located at Map 018 Lot 077, as depicted on the plan on file at the Rockport Town
Office, located behind the West Rockport Fire Station, to the abutter, Nelson M
Tolman, for One Dollar and land exchanged, for the purpose of clarifying the
common boundary and improving the town owned lot configuration for siting a
new Fire Station at that location.

All are welcome to attend these public hearings and/or to provide comment on the proposed
amendments. Printed copies of the proposed ordinance amendments are on file in the Town
Clerk’s Office at the Rockport Town Office located at 101 Main Street, Rockport, ME 04856



Diane Hamilton

Executive Assistant

General Assistance Administrator
dhamilton@town.rockport.me.us

Richard C. Bates
Town Manager
rbates@town.rockport.me.us

101 Main Street
Rockport, Maine 04856
207-236-0806 X 3
207-230-0112 Fax
www.town.rockport.me.us

-Public Hearing-

Monday, April 8, 2019, 7:00 p.m.
Geoffrey C. Parker Meeting Room Opera House,
at a Regular Select Board Meeting.

(1) Approve the design, site preparation, and construction of a sewer line
extension from Sea Light Lane to South Street along Route 1, including all
other expenses reasonably related thereto (the “Project”);

(2) Appropriate the sum of $4,500,000 as funds for the costs of the Project to
be funded through general obligation bonds; and

(3) Authorize the Select Board to issue, at one time or from time to time,
general obligation securities of the Town of Rockport, Maine, including
future refunding obligations, in an aggregate principal amount not to
exceed $4,500,000;

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Total Town Indebtedness:

A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $ 2,147,889
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $ 1,500,000
C. Bonds to be issued if this Article is approved: $ 4,500,000

Total $ 8,147,889


mailto:rbates@town.rockport.me.us
mailto:dhamilton@town.rockport.me.us
http://www.town.rockport.me.us/

Costs:
At an estimated interest rate of 2% for an estimated 20-year maturity, the
estimated costs of this bond issue will be:

Principal: $ 4,500,000
Interest: $ 1,004,105
Total Debt Service: $ 5,504,105

Validity: The validity of the bonds and the voters’ ratification of the bonds may
not be affected by any errors in the above estimates. If the actual amount of the
total debt service for the bond issue varies from the estimate, the ratification by
the electors is nonetheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is not
affected by reason of the variance.



Article 3. Shall an Ordinance entitled “Local Food Sovereignty Ordinance” be
enacted?

Whereas the Town of Rockport deems it in the best interest of its citizens to encourage food self-
sufficiency as allowed by 7 M.R.S. 283.

Now Therefore the Town of Rockport does ordain as follows:
Sec. 1. Short Title

This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Local Food Sovereignty
Ordinance.”

Sec. 2. Purpose

The Town of Rockport encourages food self-sufficiency for its residents. This Ordinance
adopts the policies underlying the Maine Food Sovereignty Act as outlined in 7 M.R.S. § 283.

Sec. 3. Words and Phrases Defined
For the purposes of this article, certain words and phrases are defined as follows:

1. Direct producer-to-consumer transaction; "Direct producer-to-consumer transaction"
means a face-to-face transaction involving food or food products at the site of production of
those food or food products.

2. Food or food products. "Food or food products" means food or food products
intended for human consumption, including, but not limited to, milk or milk products, meat or
meat products, poultry or poultry products, fish or fish products, seafood or seafood products,
fresh produce, cider or juice, acidified foods or canned fruits or vegetables.

3. State food law. "State food law™ means any provision of Title 7 or Title 22 of the
Maine Revised Statutes that regulates direct producer-to-consumer transactions.

Sec. 4. License and Inspection Exemptions

1. Direct producer-to-consumer transactions of food or food products shall be exempt
from State food laws in the Town of Rockport.

a. These exemptions do not apply to any meat or poultry products that are
licensed and inspected by the State of Maine in compliance with applicable
federal acts.

2. An individual who grows, produces, processes or prepares food or food products for
purposes other than direct producer-to-consumer transactions shall grow, produce, process or
prepare the food or food products in compliance with all applicable state and federal food safety
laws, rules and regulations.

Sec. 5. Authority

1. This ordinance is adopted and enacted pursuant to 7 M.R.S. §§ 281-286, the Maine
Food Sovereignty Act.

2. To the extent that any provision of this ordinance is deemed invalid by a court of



competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be removed from the ordinance and the balance of
the ordinance shall remain valid.

Avrticle 4. Shall an ordinance entitled, Ordinance Limiting Home Cultivation of
Marijuana for Personal Adult Use” be enacted?

Whereas the Town of Rockport deems it in the best interest of its citizens to limit the cultivation
of marijuana for personal adult use with the Town, without affecting cultivation, use or
distribution of Medical marijuana as allowed by 22 MRSA Chapter 558-C

Now Therefore the Town of Rockport does ordain as follows:
Section 1: Legislative Authority

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the Marijuana legalization Act 28-B MRSA Section 1502
Municipal Home Rule Authority, Maine Constitution Article VIII, Part 2 and 30-A MRSA
Section 3001

Section 2: Limitation of Home Cultivation

Home cultivation of marijuana for personal adult use by a person 21 years of age or older is
limited to cultivation of three mature marijuana plants, twelve immature marijuana plants and an
unlimited number of seedlings by each person 21 years of age or older who is domiciled on a
parcel or tract of land, pursuant to 28-B MRSA section 1502. No person shall be permitted to
cultivate marijuana plants or seedlings on a parcel or tract of land on which he or she is not
domiciled. Nothing in the ordinance is intended to prohibit the lawful cultivation, use possession
or conduct pursuant to the Maine Medical use of Marijuana Act 22 MRD+SA section 2421-
2430-B.

Section 3: Effective Date: Duration

This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon enactment by the Town of Rockport unless
otherwise provided and shall remain in effect until it is amended or repealed.

Section 4: Enforcement Violations and Penalties

This Ordinance shall be enforced by the municipal officers or their designee. Violation of this
Ordinance shall be subject to the enforcement and penalty provisions of 30-A MRSA section
4452

Article 5. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport
Coastal Waters and Harbor at Section 202 to add a new definition for
resident,” be enacted?

Definition:

Resident: A resident for the purposes of this Ordinance shall include at least one of the following:

e A person who is eligible to vote in Rockport.
e A person is a property tax payer in Rockport excluding timeshare owners.




Article 6. Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport
Coastal Waters and Harbor at Section 503.1 to revise the requirements for
moorings,” be enacted?

503.1- Mooring Specifications

All moorings shall meet the following minimum standards which are designed for normal weather
conditions. It is the mooring owner’s responsibility to ensure that additional precautions are taken in the
event of gale winds and/or extreme tides. The safe and serviceable condition and adequate size of all
mooring equipment is the responsibility of the mooring permit holder. The prudent seaman rule shall

apply.

The Harbormaster or its designee reserve the right to require a vessel owner to increase the minimum
mooring standard for any vessel should they determine the minimum standard would be inadequate
because of the unusual design of the vessel such as but not limited to excessive weight, windage or
draft.

Minimum Mooring Specifications

Vessel Length Granite Dry Weight Bottom Chain Top Chain Pennant size
0-16’ 1000# %" (diameter) 3/8” (diameter) »"
17-22' 2000# 4 3/8” “1/2”
23-30’ 4000# 1” %’ 5/8”
31-40° 5000# 17 %" %"
41-50° 6000# 17 5/8” 17
51'< Harbormaster Approval

All granite moorings shall have a minimum staple diameter of 1”.

All Moorings

Any mooring other than a granite block shall be at the Harbormaster’s discretion.

If the mooring is set in less than 15’ at MLW; the bottom chain length shall be 5’ more than the depth at
mean low water (MLW) and additionally the top chain length shall equal the mean high-water depth
(MHW). When a mooring site is in deeper water than 15’ mean low water (MLW), the length of bottom
chain shall be 15’-30’ and additionally the top chain length shall equal the depth at MHW.

All chain and connecting shackles shall be load rated and shackle pins shall be secured with multi-strand
stainless steel wire. All shackles shall be a minimum of one size larger than the chain it is attached to.

Pennants shall be made of nylon or Harbormaster approved type line and shall have proper chafe gear.
The pennant length shall be no less than two times and more than three times the height from the bow
chock to the water, plus the distance from the chock to the cleat on deck.

Mooring buoys shall be inflated, formed, molded or fabricated from rubber, plastic, fiberglass or steel
and shall be a minimum of 18 inches in diameter.




All transient/service moorings shall be white and marked with the owner’s identification, mooring
number and maximum vessel length. All private moorings shall be marked with the mooring number.
The use of wood mooring spars is prohibited. Winter mooring markers shall not be installed prior to
September 15th and must be removed prior to June 1st.

Article 7. Shall an ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport
Coastal Waters and Harbor at Section 507 to add winter mooring
specifications,” be enacted?

507- Winter Moorings

No moorings shall be occupied in Rockport Harbor during the winter period from Dec 1% to March 1%,
without advance approval by the Harbormaster. The Harbormaster shall grant approval for use of
moorings during the winter period only if the Harbormaster determines that the boat owner has
adequately demonstrated that: (i) the vessel to be moored is seaworthy; (ii) the mooring or anchoring
gear is adequate to withstand ice and other adverse weather conditions; and (iii) the vessel owner has
adequate access to the vessel in winter conditions. Harbormaster approval does not imply an assurance
of security and the ultimate risk lies with the vessel owner.

Article 8. Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport
Coastal Waters and Harbor at section 601.9 to establish requirements for
encapsulated polystyrene floatation,” be enacted?

601.9

All floats constructed or replaced in the harbor after July 1°* 2019 shall be constructed with
encapsulated floatation. The intent is to eventually eliminate all unencapsulated polystyrene floatation.




Article 3

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Three (3) of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting
Warrant (Food Sovereignty Ordinance)

Manager’s Comments — Included in your packet is a copy of the warrant article and the
proposed food sovereignty ordinance as presented and approved at a previous Select
Board meeting and as revised by Town Counsel, Phil Saucier. The revised ordinance is
fully compliant to State Statute.

This ordinance encourages food self-sufficiency for its residents. This Ordinance adopts
the policies underlying the Maine Food Sovereignty Act as outlined in 7 M.R.S. § 283.

Suggested motion — | move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Three (3)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Food Sovereignty Ordinance) at (note the
time for the record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Three (3)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Food Sovereignty Ordinance) at (note the
time for the record)



Article 4

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (4) of the June 2019 Annual town Meeting
Warrant (Marijuana Cultivation Ordinance)

Manager’s Comments — Included in your packet is a copy of the warrant article and the
proposed ordinance.

This ordinance clears up a loophole in the statute by making it clear that you cannot grow
marijuana for anyone, that does not live at the place where the plants are being grown.
There have been some issues in parts of the State and other parts of the country, where
individuals are paying someone to grow their plants for them, bypassing the “commercial
growing” operations, currently not permitted in Rockport. This has been developed with
the assistance of Town Counsel and in compliance with current statute.

From the ordinance, “home cultivation of marijuana for personal adult use by a person 21
years of age or older is limited to cultivation of three mature marijuana plants, twelve
immature marijuana plants and an unlimited number of seedlings by each person 21 years
of age or older who is domiciled on a parcel or tract of land, pursuant to 28-B MRSA
section 1502. No person shall be permitted to cultivate marijuana plants or seedlings on a
parcel or tract of land on which he or she is not domiciled. Nothing in this ordinance is
intended to prohibit the lawful cultivation, use possession or conduct pursuant to the
Maine Medical use of Marijuana Act 22 MRD+SA section 2421-2430-B.”

Suggested motion — I move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (4)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Marijuana Cultivation ordinance) at (note
the time for the record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Four (4)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Marijuana Cultivation ordinance) at (note
the time for the record)



Article 5

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Five (5) of the June 2019 Annual town Meeting
Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance)

Manager’s Comments — included in your packet is a copy of the warrant article and the
proposed ordinance.

Under the current ordinance, the residency requirement uses the registered voter
standard to establish residency. The way the ordinance currently stands, it eliminates
people who are taxpayers and live here seasonally and claim their permanent residency
someplace else. The proposed amendment expands this definition to include anyone who
claims Rockport as their residence and people who are property taxpayers, but not FT
residents.

Suggested motion — I move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Five (5)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance) at
(note the time for the record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Five (5)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance) at
(note the time for the record)



Article 6

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Six (6) of the June 2019 Annual town Meeting
Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance)

Manager’s Comments — A copy of the warrant article and the proposed amendment is
included in your packet. This article amends the previous mooring specifications to be
more in line with industry standards.

Suggested motion — I move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Six (6) of
the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance) at
(note the time for the record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Six (6) of
the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance) at
(note the time for the record)



Article 7

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Seven (7) of the June 2019 Annual town Meeting
Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance)

Manager’s Comments — included in your packet is a copy the warrant article and the
proposed ordinance.

This article requires that all boats left on moorings for the period from December 1% —
March 1%, require Harbormaster approval.

Under the proposed amended ordinance, the Harbormaster shall grant approval for use
of moorings during the winter period only if the Harbormaster determines that the boat
owner has adequately demonstrated that: (i) the vessel to be moored is seaworthy; (ii)
the mooring or anchoring gear is adequate to withstand ice and other adverse weather
conditions; and (iii) the vessel owner has adequate access to the vessel in winter
conditions. Harbormaster approval does not imply an assurance of security and the
ultimate risk lies with the vessel owner.

Suggested motion — I move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Seven (7)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance) at
(note the time for the record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Seven (7)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance) at
(note the time for the record)



Article 8

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Eight (8) of the June 2019 Annual town Meeting
Warrant (Coastal Waters and Harbor Ordinance)

Manager’s Comments — included in your packet is a copy of the warrant article and the
proposed ordinance.

Under this revised ordinance, all floats constructed or replaced in the harbor after July
1% 2019 will be constructed with encapsulated floatation. The intent is to eventually
eliminate all unencapsulated polystyrene floatation from Rockport Harbor.

Suggested motion — | move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article
Eight (8) of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and
Harbor Ordinance) at (note the time for the record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article
Eight (8) of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Coastal Waters and
Harbor Ordinance) at (note the time for the record)



Article 9

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Nine (9) of the June 2019 Annual town Meeting
Warrant (Sale of Town Owned Land)

Manager’s Comments — included in your packet is a copy of the warrant article and a
copy of the drawing depicting the land in question.

As discussed at a previous meeting of the Select Board, passage of this article will exchange
a piece of the land, purchased in 2016 for the future expansion of the West Rockport Fire
Station with the Nelson M. Tolman, the abutter, for One Dollar and land exchanged. This
will allow for better siting of a future Fire Station with proper setbacks and allowances
around the building for expansion.

The land being conveyed to Mr. Tolman is of no value to the Town and we will maintain
the most valuable land for Town use. By adding this land to the current Tolman lot, it
could become more valuable, for future economic development and more tax dollars if a
bigger building we able to be located on the lot.

Suggested motion — I move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Nine (9)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Sale of Town Owned Land) at (note the
time for the record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Nine (9)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Sale of Town Owned Land) at (note the
time for the record)



Article 10

Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Ten (10) of the June 2019 Annual town Meeting
Warrant (Sewer Bond)

Manager’s Comments — included in your packet is a copy of the warrant article and
bond language

On February 11™ 2019 the Select Board voted to move forward with the process of
developing a bond proposal to complete the construction of a sewer extension along the
unserved portion of Route 1, between Sea light lane and Pen Bay Hospital. This
followed a long series of previous actions on the part of the Board and the Town,
spanning several years beginning with preliminary investigative and survey work, and
preliminary design work.

At a special Town Meeting in 2018, voters approved a change in the TIP plan and
approved the expenditure of existing TIF funds for the purpose of final design of the
system that would go out to bid once voters approve a bond to build the system. That
final design is in process now and will be completed soon.

The payments of principal and interest for this bond is covered entirely with TIP proceeds
and from sewer user fees and this has no impact to the taxpayers.

Suggested motion — I move to open the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Ten (10)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Sewer Bond) at (note the time for the
record)

Invite public comment.

If there is no public comment, note that for the record.

Suggested motion — I move to close the Public Hearing on proposed Warrant Article Ten (10)
of the June 2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant (Sewer Bond) at (note the time for the
record)



ROCKPORT SELECT BOARD
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2019
6:00 P.M.
GEOFFREY C. PARKER COMMUNITY MEETING ROOM, ROCKPORT
OPERA HOUSE
Streamed at

Present: Chair, Kenneth McKinley, Vice Chair Debra Hall, Douglas Cole, Jeffrey Hamilton and
Mark G. Kelley. Also, present: Richard C. Bates, Town Manager; Megan Brackett, Finance
Director and members of the public

l. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - Kenneth McKinley, Chair called the meeting to order at
6:01 P.M.

. DISCUSS AND APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE
ROCKPORT LIBRARY FOUNDATION

The Board discussed the track changes that have been made. The one change that received the
most discussion was the last sentence in number nine.

Jeff — have there been any substantive changes made?

Rick — no.

Mark — Megan when will we have the money from the bond?

Megan — May 23",

Mark — where does the money come from now?

Rick — It was pointed out that taxes were just paid so we have the cash flow to fund the payment
of the outstanding invoices and pay the Town back through the bond funds or Foundation
funds. The Board was agreeable to paying the outstanding invoices.

Debra -Noted that she understands that the Foundation has taken the position they are not paying
for the demolition cost but confirmed that those funds will come out of the $1.5 million.
She noted that whether the Foundation reimburses for certain costs, it just means their
attachment point is that much sooner in the process. In other words, any funds that are not

paid by the Foundation and come out of the $1.5 million, just means that the $1.5 million
is expended that much sooner leaving Foundation funds as the only source of payment.

Ken — we will see where we are after the bids come in this week.



ROCKPORT SELECT BOARD MINUTES
TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2019

Debra — Debra noted that there are a few changes that should have been made to the MOU to
improve the drafting, but she will not cause delay by correcting those at this point.

Douglas Cole moved to direct the Town Manager to sign the Memorandum of
Understanding with the Rockport Library Foundation. Jeffrey Hamilton seconded the
motion. VOTE: 5 FOR — 0 OPPOSED.

We can now start paying invoices.

1. VOTE TO ACCEPT DONATIONS FROM THE ROCKPORT LIBRARY
FOUNDATION

Jeffrey Hamilton moved to accept the donation from the Rockport Library Foundation in
the amount of $93, 556 in United States dollars, received on March 25, 2019 for the
construction of the new Rockport Public Library. Douglas Cole seconded the motion.
VOTE: 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED

Debra Hall moved to accept any and all future donations from the Rockport Library
Foundation up to an amount of Two Million Dollars, for the construction of the new
Rockport Public Library. Jeffrey Hamilton seconded the motion. VOTE: 5 FOR -0
OPPOSED

IV.  ADJOURNMENT

Debra Hall moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:14 p.m. Jeffrey Hamilton seconded the
motion. VOTE: 5 FOR — 0 OPPOSED

Respectfully submitted,

LINDA M. GREENLAW
TOWN CLERK as RECORDING SECRETARY

Page 2 of 2



ROCKPORT SELECT BOARD
EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2019
7:00 P.M.

ROCKPORT TOWN OFFICE
MANAGER’S CONFERENCE ROOM

Present: Chair, Kenneth McKinley, Vice-Chair, Debra Hall, Douglas Cole Jeffrey Hamilton and
Mark Kelley. Also present was Richard Bates, Town Manager and Phil Saucier, Town Attorney.

l. CALL MEETING TO ORDER - Kenneth McKinley, Chair called the meeting to order at
7:00 p.m.

Il. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. Consultation with Town Counsel pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405 (6) (E)
concerning the Legal Rights and Duties of the Board

At 7:00 p.m. Douglas Cole moved to go into executive session pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A.
Section 405 (6) (E). Mark Kelley seconded the motion. VOTE: 5 FOR — 0 OPPOSED

At 9:15 p.m., Jeffrey Hamilton moved to exit executive session. Mark Kelley seconded the
motion. VOTE: 5 FOR -0

Phil Saucier was contacted by phone and was on conference for the entirety of the meeting.
1.  ADJOURNMENT

Jeffrey Hamilton moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:16 p.m. Mark Kelley seconded the
motion. VOTE: 5 FOR — 0 OPPOSED

Respectfully submitted,

LINDA M. GREENLAW
TOWN CLERK AS RECORDING SECRETARY



V. Town Manager’s Update

» The manager’s update will be delivered verbally at the meeting



VI1Il. Unfinished Business

a. Policy discussion on allocating indirect costs to capital projects

Manager’s Comments:

Included in your packet are notes from the board chair with his thoughts as a possible
direction on this topic.



Possible policies for allocating indirect costs to Capital projects

The motivation for considering such policies is to more clearly define the cost of capital projects
in terms of the use of town resources, and to prevent the budgets from some departments from
being skewed in a given year when the resources of that department are used to help
accomplish a capital project.

There are a few possible options to consider:

1. All capital projects that utilize town resources will have all their costs (labor and
materials) assigned to each department that participates in accomplishing the
project. For example, if an alarm system was installed at the opera house, the cost of a
contractor would show up in the opera house budget, but any tasks accomplished by the
public works department would be accounted for in their budget, the time spent by the
finance department working on the project would show up in their budget, and any oversight
provided by the town manager would show up in that budget. If the planning office secured a
grant, time needed to accomplish that would be assigned to that budget, and if the fire or
police chief spent time evaluating and/or making recommendations for the project, their time
would be accounted for in their department budgets.

PROS: All capital jobs would have detailed cost information allowing for more precise
tracking of town resources.

CONS: The work of tracking and accounting for this method could be quite
burdensome.

2. Only capital projects (or portions of projects) that are funded by non-taxpayer
revenue streams will have their costs covered by these revenue streams (labor and
materials) assighed to each department that participates in accomplishing the
project. For example, the work done by public works on the restoration of the Andre statue
could have been shown in the Public Works budget with an offsetting revenue from the
funding source.

PROS: Capital jobs with non taxpayer revenue could have some of their funding
directed to the budgets of departments doing the work, reducing year over year
fluctuations in the net budgets of departments, and making sure that recurring
department tasks are not impacted in annual budgets.

CONS: Some additional work for accounting. Matching requirements for some grants
are funded by “in kind” contributions, these would not be able to be shown as
revenues.

3. No change to the current situation. This would mean that when a decision is made for
work to be done on capital projects by town departments for reasons of efficiency and/or
cost saving, that work would be absorbed into the annual budget of each department.

PROS: No change to current accounting practices, perhaps easier to leverage town
resources to accomplish some smaller capital projects.

CONS: Limited ability to use outside funding for capital projects to ease taxpayer
burden in annual budgets.



VI1Il.New Business

b. Sign copies of the Annual Town Meeting Warrant for Tuesday June 11, 2019 and
Wednesday June 12, 2019

Manager’s Comments:

Included in the packet is a copy of the final warrant for the Board. There will be 5 originals
in the sign file, awaiting your signature.

This is basically a housekeeping issue for the Select Board to sign the warrant. The warrant
contains all the articles you voted at the last meeting, in its official form.



TOWN OF ROCKPORT
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING WARRANT
Tuesday, June 11, 2019 and
Wednesday, June 12, 2019

To:  Randy Gagne, Constable of the Town of Rockport, in the County of Knox, State of Maine

Greetings:

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the voters of
the Town of Rockport in said County, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to meet at the
Rockport Town Office, of the said Town of Rockport, on Tuesday, the 11th day of June, 2019 at
8:00 o’clock in the forenoon to 8:00 o’clock in the evening to vote on Articles 1 through 10 at
which time the meeting will adjourn. The adjourned meeting will be reopened on Wednesday, the
12th day of June 2019 at the Rockport Opera House, at 7:00 o’clock in the evening, then and there
to act on the remaining articles in the warrant.

Article 1. To elect a moderator to preside at said meeting.

Article 2. To elect:

a. One Select Board members and overseers of the poor for three-year terms.
b. Three Budget Committee members for three-year terms.
C. One Budget Committee member for one-year term.
d. Two Library Committee members for three-year terms.
e. One Director of SAD #28 and to also serve concurrently on the Five Town
CSD School Board for a three-year term.
Article 3. Shall an Ordinance entitled “Local Food Sovereignty Ordinance” be enacted?
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Article 4. Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance Limiting Home Cultivation of Marijuana

for Personal Adult Use” be enacted?

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

Article 5. Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport Coastal
Waters and Harbor at Section 202 to add a new definition for resident,” be enacted?

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Article 6.

Article 7.

Article 8.

Article 9.

Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport Coastal
Waters and Harbor at Section 503.1 to revise the requirements for moorings,” be
enacted?

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

Shall an ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport Coastal
Waters and Harbor at Section 507 to add winter mooring specifications,” be
enacted?

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

Shall an Ordinance entitled, “Ordinance amending the Town of Rockport Coastal
Waters and Harbor at section 601.9 to establish requirements for encapsulated
polystyrene floatation,” be enacted?

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to approve the sale of a portion of Town owned land
located at Map 018 Lot 077, as depicted on the plan on file at the Rockport Town
Office, located behind the West Rockport Fire Station, to the abutter, Nelson M
Tolman, for One Dollar and land exchanged, for the purpose of clarifying the
common boundary and improving the town owned lot configuration for siting a new
Fire Station at that location.

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Article 10.

Shall the Town:

(1) Approve the design, site preparation, and construction of a sewer line extension
from Sea Light Lane to South Street along Route 1, including all other expenses
reasonably related thereto (the “Project”);

(2) Appropriate the sum of $4,500,000 as funds for the costs of the Project to be
funded through general obligation bonds; and

(3) Authorize the Select Board to issue, at one time or from time to time, general
obligation securities of the Town of Rockport, Maine, including future refunding
obligations, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,500,000

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Total Town Indebtedness:

A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $ 2,147,889
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $ 1,500,000
C. Bonds to be issued if this Article is approved: $ 4,500,000
Total $ 8,147,889
Costs:

At an estimated interest rate of 2% for an estimated 20-year maturity, the
estimated costs of this bond issue will be:

Principal: $ 4,500,000
Interest: $ 1,004,105
Total Debt Service: $ 5,504,105

Validity: The validity of the bonds and the voters’ ratification of the bonds may
not be affected by any errors in the above estimates. If the actual amount of the
total debt service for the bond issue varies from the estimate, the ratification by
the electors is nonetheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is not
affected by reason of the variance.

S/ , Town Treasurer

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Article 11.

Article 12.

Article 13.

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for General
Government for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. AAMINISIIATION .. e $77,505
B. TOWN MANAGET ... .cciiiiieiece ettt sttt sreenas $332,060
C. TOWN CLEIK .ottt s $242,270
D. Planning & Community Development ...........ccooceveviiiniienennenne $203,253
E. FINANCE ..ottt sebea e e eaes $183,275
F. AASSESSING ...ttt $208,286
G. Town Office BUIliNG.......ccooeveiiiiieiicececeeee e $156,607
H. INSUTANCE. ...ttt ettt et e st e e s erae e s bee s $79,092

B0 - | $1,482,348

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 3 For, 1 Against, 1 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for Public

Assistance for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. GENETAl ASSISTANCE ....oveeiveie sttt $27,930
B I0] - TR $27,930

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

Select Board Votes: 4 For, 0 Against, 1 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for Public Safety
for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. POlice DEPArtMENt ......c.oiveieieieeieeee e $605,495
B. Fire DepartMent...... ..o $545,880
C. West ROCKpOrt Fire Station .........ccccceveveieiniiieeerese e $5,979
D. Other Public Safety SErVICES ......ccocvvereieiiieeeeese e $319,037
E. ANIMAL CONIOL ... $5,864
F. HarDOIMASEEN ......c.veeieieiece et $202,855
G. Public Safety BUilding.........ccccoovriieiiiieeeceeee e $39,800
H. Emergency Management ...........cccoooveiieiineeneeiine s $6,060

LI L | SSSRSRSS $1,730,970

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Article 14.

Article 15.

Article 16.

Article 17.

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for Public Works
for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. PUDIIC WOTKS ... ettt $1,786,900
B. SANIEALION ... e $169,350
TO Al $1,956,250

Budget Committee Votes: 6 For, 1 Against, 0 Abstain  RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for Culture and
Recreation for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. LEDIAIY .o s $447,009
B. Conservation COMMISSION ......ccovveeiieiiieiieeesiee s siee e siee e e sae e sreee e $9,645
C. P IS e $81,765
D. OPEIa HOUSE ..ottt $126,220
E. Library Building (1 LImMerock) ........cccceeverineniineiese e, $300
F. RECIEAION. . ...ttt e e $56,181

B I0] - TR $721,120

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for Long Term
Debt (Debt Payments) for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:
A. DIBDL ... e $190,448

0] | $190,448
Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for County Fees
for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. County Service, E-O11......ccooiieiiie e s $70,042
B. County Service, DiSpatCh .........ccccevveviiiiere e $34,512
B I0] -1 TR $104,554

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Article 18.

Article 19.

Article 20.

Article 21.

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following for Cemeteries
and Special Assessments for the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. (O=T 0 [=] (=T =TT $55,572
B. Special ASSESSIMENTS ........civviiiirieieieie e $6,800
B I0] - TR $62,372

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate the following as Revenue
from the following sources to be used in reducing the property tax assessment for
the 2019/2020 fiscal year:

A. General GOVEIMMENT.........ccuvieeiieriiie e $1,223,625
B. PUDIIC ASSISTANCE ... ..eeiieeie ittt $13,055
C. PUBIIC SAfetY ..o $310,398
D. PUDIIC WOTKS ...ttt $177,964
E. Culture and RECIEALION .......cocveveiriiiceie e $129,692
F. All Other — CEMELEIIES ....cvvveiceeie ettt $32,700
G. Unassigned Fund Balance ..o $160,000
H. SPECIal ASSESSMENTS.....eveeeiirierieieieeie ettt $130,000

0] - TR $2,177,434

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the transfer of all unexpended balances to
fund balance and to authorize the overdrafts that may occur in the Town operations
in the 2019/2020 budget to be taken from fund balance?

Budget Committee Votes: 6 For, 0 Against, 1 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the payment of tax abatements and
applicable interest from the property tax overlay account?

Budget Committee Votes: 6 For, 0 Against, 1 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Article 22.

Article 23.

Article 24.

Article 25.

Article 26.

Article 27.

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board, on behalf of the Town to
sell and dispose of any real estate acquired by the Town for non-payment of taxes
thereon, on such terms as they deem advisable, and to execute quit claim deeds for
the property. The sale or disposal shall be made only after consultation with the
Planning Board and the Conservation Commission, except for the purpose of
clearing title or of reconveyance of real estate to the original owner or in the case of
time-share units, reconveyance back to the original owner or the time-share estates
association of unit owners; property to be disposed of by written policy and on terms
the Select Board deem advisable.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board, on behalf of the Town to
sell and dispose of any real estate acquired by the Town for non-payment of
wastewater thereon, on such terms as they deem advisable, and to execute quit claim
deeds for the property. The sale or disposal shall be made only after consultation
with the Planning Board and the Conservation Commission, except for the purpose
of clearing title or of reconveyance of real estate to the original owner. Property to
be disposed of by written policy and on terms the Select Board deem advisable.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to set October 15, 2019 and April 15, 2020 as the tax
installment due dates.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to set October 16, 2019 and April 16, 2020 as the tax
delinquency dates and to fix the rate of interest on delinquent taxes at 9.00% interest
per year.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to fix the rate of interest on delinquent wastewater
charges at 9.00% interest per year.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
To see if the Town will authorize the Select Board and Treasurer, on behalf of the
Town, to accept gifts, real estate, and certain funds, including trust funds, that may

be given or left to the Town.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
7



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Article 28.

Article 29.

Article 30.

Article 31.

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Select Board to accept those
conservation easements which the Select Board deem appropriate in the name of the
Town of Rockport, provided however, said conservation easements are first
considered by the Rockport Conservation Commission and Planning Board.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will authorize the Treasurer to waive the foreclosure of tax lien
mortgages pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. sec. 944 upon a finding by the Select Board
that ownership of the property subject to the lien would be contrary to the Town's
best interest.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will authorize the Select Board to enter into boundary line
agreements with abutting property owners to establish the boundary line of any
property of the Town, including the boundary lines of the rights-of-way of roads.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard
agreement with taxpayers establishing a "tax club™ payment plan for commercial
and/or residential real estate property taxes, whereby:

(1) The taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on
his/her estimated and actual tax obligation for current year real estate property taxes;
(2) The Town agrees not to charge interest on timely payments made pursuant to the
tax club agreement;

(3) The Town authorizes the collector to accept tax club payments for current year
taxes which may be due prior to the commitment of those taxes;

(4) The agreement is automatically terminated if a scheduled payment is late, and the
taxpayer then becomes subject to the same due date(s) and interest date(s) and rate
as other taxpayers who are not participating in the tax club;

(5) Only taxpayers who do not have outstanding tax obligations for prior tax years
are eligible to participate in the tax club program; and

(6) Taxpayers wishing to participate in the tax club for a particular property tax year
shall enter an agreement with the Town by a publicly-advertised deadline
determined by the Tax Collector.

Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND



2019 Annual Town Meeting Warrant — continued

Date: April 29, 2019

Kenneth McKinley, Chair

Debra Hall, Vice-Chair

Douglas Cole

Jeffrey Hamilton

Mark Kelley

ROCKPORT SELECT BOARD
Attest:

Linda M. Greenlaw, Town Clerk



c. Vote to sign the Budget Validation Referendum - MSAD #28 and Five Town
CSD Warrant and Notice of Election for Tuesday, June 11, 2019

Manager’s Comments:

Included in the packet is a copy of the Budget Validation Referendum for the Five Town
CSD Warrant and Notice of Election for Tuesday, June 11, 2019.

Not included in your packet is the Budget Validation Referendum MSAD #28.

The MSAD will be meeting on this on Thursday, April 25" and we will send a digital
copy of this out, once received.

This is simply a procedural step in the process and the board needs to sign this, so that it
can be posted.



WARRANT AND NOTICE OF ELECTION
CALLING FIVE TOWN COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGET VALIDATION REFERENDUM
(20-A MLR.S. § 1486)

TO: Robin Fagan, a resident Five Town Community School District (the “District™) composed of the
Towns of Appleton, Camden, Hope, Lincolaville and Rockport, State of Maine.

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby ordered to serve upon the municipal clerks of each of
the municipalities within the District, namely, the Towns of Appleton, Camden, Hope, Lincolnville and
Rockport, an attested copy of this warrant and notice of election. Service shall be in hand within three
(3) days of the date of this warrant and notice of election. The municipal clerks of the above
municipalities shall immediately notify the respective Municipal Officers. The Municipal Officers shall
meet forthwith and countersign this warrant and notice of election. The Municipal Officers shall
provide below for the respective municipal clerks to post or have posted this warrant and notice of
election.

TOWN OF ROCKPORT
DISTRICT BUDGET VALIDATION REFERENDUM
WARRANT AND NOTICE OF ELECTION

Knox County, ss. State of Maine

TO:  Randy Gagne, Constable of Rockport: You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine
to notify the voters of this municipality of the election described in this warrant and notice of election.

TO THE VOTERS OF ROCKPORT: You are hereby notified that a District budget validation
referendum election will be held at Town Office, 101 Main Street in the Town of Rockport on Tuesday,
June 11, 2019 for the purpose of determining the following articles:

Article 1A:  To elect a moderator to preside at said meeting,

Article 1: Do you favor approving the Five Town Community School District budget for the
upcoming school year that was adopted at the latest District budget meeting?

Article 2: Do you wish to continue the budget validation referendum process in Five Town
Community School District for an additional three years?

INFORMATIONAL NOTE ON ARTICLE 2:

A “YES” vote will require Five Town Community School District to continue to conduct
a referendum to validate its annual school budget for the next three years.

A “NO” vote will discontinue the budget validation referendum for at least three years
and provide instead that the annual school budget shall be finally adopted at a meeting of
the voters of Five Town Community School District.




The voting on Articles 1 and 2 shall be by secret ballot referendum. The polls will be opened
immediately after election of the moderator following commencement of the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and
closed at 8:00 p.m.

The Registrar of Voters shall hold office hours while the polls are open to correct any error in or change
a name or address on the voting list; to accept the registration of any person eligible to vote and to
accept new enrollments.

A person who is not registered as a voter may not vote in any election.

Given under our hand this day, April 3, 2019 at Rockport,
)
n) e s
! 2 Y /

Maine,

——

A majority of the School Board of Five Town Community School District

A true copy of the Warrant and Notice of . %

Election, attest: A=

obin Fagdn
Resident of
Five Town Community School District

Countersigned this day of , 2019 at Rockport, Maine.

A majority of the Municipal Officers of Rockport, Maine

A true copy of the Warrant and Notice of
Election, attest:

Linda Greenlaw, Municipal Clerk
Rockport, Maine



RETURN
Knox County, ss. State of Maine

TO: The School Board of Five Town Community School D1str1ct
, 2019 L

Pursuant to the within warrant and notice of election, directed to me, I have served in hand upon the
municipal clerk of Rockport, an attested copy of this warrant and notice of election, directing the
Municipal Officers of said municipality to call a Five Town Community School District budget

validation referendum at said time and place and fo@he purposmted

Gb’m Fagan '
esulent of
Five Town Community School District

RETURN
Knox County, ss. State of Maine
TO:  The Municipal Officers of the Town of Rockport
I certify that I have notified the voters of the Town of Rockport of the time and place of the Five Town
Community School District budget validation referendum by posting an attested copy of the within

warrant and notice of election as follows:

DATE TIME LOCATION OF POSTING

being public and conspicuous places in said municipality and being at least seven days next prior to
election day.

Dated at Rockport, Maine: , 2019

Randy Gagne, Constable
Rockport, Maine



d. Discussion regarding an infrastructure bond
Manager’s Comments:

Included in your packet are a number of documents relative to the infrastructure projects
that we are working on with the CIP committee. This is simply for discussion purposes
at this point to keep the board informed on process thus far and to adjust if necessary.
Not included in the packet at this point is the Road and sidewalk information that is being
worked on at PWD. Mike is working on that inventory and priority list for the CIP
committee now.



Capital Improvement Committee Meeting

Tuesday — April 9, 2019
5:00 p.m.
Richardson Room
Town Office — 101 Main Street - Rockport

MINUTES

» Call Meeting to Order at 5 p.m. by Allen Mitchell
» Attendance: Steve Corson, Joyce Mohr, Mark Kelley, Jeff Hamilton, Allen
Mitchell, Megan Brackett, Rick Bates, Jeff Charland

» New Business

o Discuss Bonding and Project Timeline

Megan Brackett provide the CIP Committee the memo she sent to
the Select Board dated April 1%, 2019 in reference to: Timeline for
Infrastructure Bond. This document outlined the strict timeline that
would need to be followed for a possible November 2019 ballot
vote for an infrastructure bond.

o Review Select Board items for an Infrastructure Bond

Megan Brackett provided the CIP Committee the memo she sent to
the Select Board dated April 1, 2019 in reference to: Capital
Improvement Projects. This document outlines the items that the
Select Board set aside during the budget process as possible items
to go into an infrastructure bond.

o Discuss any other items the Committee feels should be on the bond issue
and why

Allen Mitchell asked that they consider adding the PW Exhaust
removal system to the list of items to be bonded. Jeff Charland
agreed with this. Mark Kelley added that we should do the Public
Safety Building one as well.

It was also asked that we consider adding the Town Office vault
fire suppression system to the bond as there are a lot of documents
held in there that would be destroyed with the current suppression
we have.

Jeff Hamilton suggested Mt. Pleasant Street be in its own warrant
article, as it is a large expense for a select few people.

Paving: We had a very long discussion about paving, Megan
Brackett mentioned that she has run the numbers on the number of



lane miles the Town has and about how much payment that
equates to in tons. The numbers tell us that the Town is
underfunding paving by about $600,000 a year. This would mean
that we would be repaving roads even seven (7) years. This would
keep the Town from having to bond paving projects, and it would
mean that we would “loose” far fewer roads. However, because we
have not adequately funded this capital item, it would take a lot for
the Town to be able to catch up.

e Jeff Hamilton presented a method in which we can rate the
roads that would be completely logical. Megan agrees with
this process and her a Rick will talk with Mike Young
about getting this completed.

= A draft final project list for the Infrastructure bond, this list will
change some when they get the final paving numbers from Mike
Young.

e Walker Park Seawall — estimated cost $400,000

e Town Pier — estimated cost $162,000

e Public Safety Building Paving, Town Paving and Harbor
Paving — estimated cost $116,000

e Building Improvements: Public Works Exhaust, Public
Safety Building Exhaust, Town Office Building Vault —
estimated cost $75,000

= May need to consider a taxable bond issue for the following items:
e Columbarium — estimated cost $75,000
e Opera House A/C Unit — estimated cost $25,000-$50,000
» Schedule the next meeting to review the final recommendations to the Select
Board
o The next meeting was scheduled for May 6" at 5:30 p.m. at the Rockport
Town Office, to review the paving information provided by Mike Young
and to draft a recommendation for the Select Board.
» Adjourn
o Meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m.



Town of Rockport, Maine

Finance Department Megan A. Brackett, Finance Director
Town Office Building mbrackett@town.rockport.me.us

101 Main Street

Rockport, Maine 04856

Telephone: 207.230.0180 x6 Fax: 207.706.4999

Date: April 1, 2019

To: Richard C. Bates. Town Manager

CC:  Rockport Select Board

RE:  CIP Meeting Follow-up — Infrastructure Bond Issues

The Capital Improvement Committee met on April 9, 2019, to discuss the possibility of the Infrastructure
Bond for the November 2019 warrant. The committee reviewed the items that were provided to them by
the Select Board (my memo dated April 1*) and had some conversation around items they felt should be
added, and some items they felt should not be on the list.

I have included a draft version of the minutes for the boards review.

The Committee will be meeting again on May 6™ at 5:30 p.m. at the Town Office to review the items for
paving that will be provided by Mike Young. Once they have reviewed these items, they will submit their
recommendations to the Select Board for the boards May 13" meeting.

As of now we are still on track for the timeline that | provided on April 1. Once the board has decided on
a final list of projects, I will start working with bond counsel to get a warrant article drafted. We will need
to wait to do any final warrant drafting until we have firm cost estimates for the projects to be included in
the warrant.

Thank you,

Megan Brackett



Town of Rockport, Maine

Finance Department Megan A. Brackett, Finance Director
Town Office Building mbrackett@town.rockport.me.us

101 Main Street

Rockport, Maine 04856

Telephone: 207.230.0180 x6 Fax: 207.706.4999

Date: April 1, 2019

To: Richard C. Bates. Town Manager
CC:  Rockport Select Board

RE:  Capital Improvement Projects

During the budget process the following projects were recognized as potential projects to be completed
with a bond issue.

1. Mt. Pleasant Street — estimated cost $390,000.

Sidewalks — Public Works and Pathways to identify the ones to be completed $200,000.

3. Walker Park Seawall — estimate to be determined once engineering has been accomplished, place
holder of $400,000.

4. Lime Kilns — price unknown currently, place holder of $325,000.

Tennis Courts — estimated cost of $125,000.

6. Columbarium at Sea View Cemetery — estimated cost $75,000 (some money currently in a
reserve account).

N

o

These projects will be forwarded to the Capital Improvement Committee for their review and give them a
chance to weigh in on these projects or other projects they think should be done.

Thank you,
Megan Brackett



Town of Rockport, Maine

Finance Department Megan A. Brackett, Finance Director
Town Office Building mbrackett@town.rockport.me.us

101 Main Street

Rockport, Maine 04856

Telephone: 207.230.0180 x6 Fax: 207.706.4999

To:

CC:

RE:

April 1, 2019
Richard C. Bates. Town Manager
Rockport Select Board

Timeline for Infrastructure Bond

Below | have drafted a timeline of events in order to get an infrastructure bond issue on the November
2019 ballot:

April —

May —

June —

9" — the Capital Improvement Committee to meet and review the new CIP and the items outlined
from the Select Board during the budget process, also give them a chance to add other items if
they deem necessary. The CIP Committee to have preliminary recommendations drafted and to
the Select Board for their first meeting in May.

Pathways Committee and Public Works Director to determine the sidewalks that would be added
to the infrastructure bond, this would need to be completed by the end of April.

Public Works Director to work with the Town engineers, or others as deemed necessary to
determine cost estimates for the sidewalks to be completed. These to be completed by the end of
July.

13t — At the Select Board regular meeting review and discuss the recommendations from the CIP
Committee. Send any recommendations or questions back to the CIP Committee through either
the Select Board liaison or the Finance Director.

Public Works Director to identify any roads that may need to be added to the bond issue and have

price estimates for these roads by the end of July.

The CIP Committee to meet again to review any direction from the Select Board and refine the
list should they need to.



Public Works Director to continue working on getting cost estimates for sidewalk projects.

July —
Public Works Director delivers all price estimates for sidewalks or roadways to the Finance
Director by July 26",
Town get the engineering done on the Walker Park Seawall project.
29" to August 6" — CIP Committee meets again to review any items the Public Works Director
has identified and review the cost estimates for the Walker Park Seawall project and adjusts their
recommendations to the Select Board as needed.

August —
12" — At the regularly scheduled Select Board meeting the Select Board will review and discuss
any further recommendation from the CIP Committee and develop a final list of projects to be
completed. All cost estimates should be done by the point, and the Select Board should have a
final bonding number.
13" — 19" — The Finance Director will work with bond counsel to get a warrant article drafted and
ready for the Select Board approval to be placed on the November warrant by September 6%

September —
12t — All items related to this bond issue need to be completed because the warrant will have to
go to the printers on or around September 13™.

October —
4™ — On or around this day absentee ballots will be available.

November —
4" _ Election Day

Thank you,

Megan Brackett



e. Discussion regarding possible workshop dealing with the future of the RES
property

Manager’s Comments:

An informal RES committee has been working on the possible development of the RES
property. The committee is made up of the Doug Cole, Deb Hall, Bill Najpauer, Hannah
Sisk and me.

During the past 6 months, we have met with various developers and realtors about
possibilities for the property and have come to a point where the group is looking to bring
community involvement into the mix and would like to hold a community workshop
some time at the end of May, to get citizen feedback.

The dates being considered are May 29" and 30",

If needed Suggested motion — I move to approve the committee’s request to hold a
community workshop on May , 2019 to get citizen feedback on the possible use of
the RES property.



f. Consideration of the Rockport Public Library bidding process
Manager’s Comments:

The Bids were all opened as planned on April 18™.
Included in your packet are copies of the results.

As you can see, they are all over the $3,000,000.00 budget needed for the project.



New Library Bid Opening, Thursday April 18" at 3:00 p.m.

Livestreamed at the Rockport Opera House

All Bids were received on time, before 2:30 p.m. on April 18™.

Bidder Name Bid Submission Base Bid #1 Bid #2 Bid #3 Bid #4

Date/Time Building Parking Intersection Stream

Blane Casey Building

Contractor, Inc. 4/18/19 - 2:08 p.m. $3,335,828.00 $95,911.00 $242,016.00 $32,750.00

Augusta, ME 04330

Bruce Laukka, Inc. 4/18/19 — 2:18 p.m. $3,658,944.00 $123,694.00 $265,773.00 $28,820.00

Rockport, ME 04856

The Penobscot Company 4/18/19 — 2:30 p.m. $3,372,579.00 $105,876.00 $243,866.00 $28,034.00

Rockport, ME 04856




43NOLSND TVLSOd
Ivo0T1

1IvL13d NAa3
dlvd
JOVISOd 'S'N
SSMYO3
dls 14S4dd

"8%96-9€¢-L02 ‘92140 umoL
3Y} 01 1IN0 YoeaJ 0} 9944 |34 asea|d Juswnaop SIYl YIIM palamsue Jou aJe suolisanb noA
11 ‘198lo0ud Jamas ay) 1noge suonsanb paxse Ajpusnbauly si JuswiNJ0p SIY} JO 8SI8A8l 8yl UQ
opIny uorjeuwniojuy
}931}S Yynog o3 aue] Ewﬁ eag

[ 3In0Y SN UOISudIXxy 1dM3g 310d>d0oYy Jo umoy],



VOTER INFORMATION FOR THE ROUTE ONE SEWER BOND ISSUE
= === ===

Background
In the 1980s, the Town of Rockport addressed a

serious environmental issue. Many homes and
businesses were discharging their sewage directly
into Penobscot Bay, both into Rockport Harbor and
into Clam Cove. Under state and federal mandates,
the Town constructed a wastewater collection
system (the sewer) in two parts - one to service
Rockport Village and surrounding areas, and
another to service the Glen Cove portion of Town.
Agreements were secured with Camden (for the
Village system) and Rockland (for the Glen Cove
system) to send the collected waste water to their
treatment plants, which meant that Rockport did not
have to construct its own treatment plant.

The construction of the two separate systems was
financed with a combination of state and federal
grants and by borrowing money through bonds that
were to be paid back over a number of years by the
users of the wastewater systems.

More Recent Years

Extensions to the original system to serve Camden
Hills Regional High School and properties along
Commercial Street (Rte. 1) from West St. (Rte. 90)
south to Elwood Ave. were constructed between
1988 and 1989 funded in part by a Tax Increment
Financing District (TIF) established for that
purpose.

As the Comprehensive Plan was developed in 2003-
2004, the issue of expanding the wastewater system
was addressed. One of the highest priorities noted in
the Comprehensive Plan is the linking of the two
wastewater systems by extending the sewer system
along Commercial St. from Elwood Ave (the
southern terminus of the “Village” system) to South
St. (the northern terminus of the Glen Cove system).

In the summer of 2014, the Wastewater
Commissioners undertook engineering and the
feasibility studies for one section of this area, from
Elwood Avenue to Sea Light Lane. We are

now proposing that the Town continue the system
and finish the connection between the Southern and
Northern ends. This extension is now known as the
Sea Light Lane to South Street extension. Our initial
cost estimates state that the project will cost 4.5

million-dollars. Our goal is to get half of the project total
cost funded by State and Federal grants.

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Why should this project go forward now?

The cost of borrowing money (interest rates) is very low. We
also have large area of land along this stretch that the owners
are looking to develop, continuing the sewer system allows
them to develop these properties and will help increase the
tax base in Town, which in turn will help lessen the burden
on current tax payers.

What are the benefits to the town for this project?

This will be the final step in connecting the Town’s two
separate wastewater systems, which when complete, will
allow the Town much greater flexibility in terms of pumping
wastewater to Camden and Rockland. In the future, should
either of those treatment plants have a reduction in their
ability to accept Rockport’s wastewater; the Town would
then be able to shift more of its wastewater to the other plant.

Also, commercial establishments in this area are currently
unable to grow and employ more people because of the
constraints of their current septic systems. By providing
sewer service to these businesses, they will be able to
continue their operations and perhaps expand. If the
businesses expand, or if new commercial or residential
development occurs in this area, it will increase the tax base
of the Town.

How much will the project cost?
The current estimate is $4.5 million.

How will the project be paid for?

The voters are being asked to approve a bond issue of up to
$4.5 million to pay for the project. This means that the town
will borrow the money, and it will be paid back over a 20-
year period.

In addition, Maine Water is extending their water mains at
the same time the sewer is extended, and they will share
some of the construction costs.

The Town will also be applying for grants tied to businesses
in this part of town either maintaining jobs or creating new
jobs as a result of the sewer extension. These factors make it
possible that the actual amount required to be raised by bonds
will be less than the $4.5 million cost.

How will the bonds be repaid?

It is anticipated that the expansion of the U S Route 1
sewer line will be paid for with the Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) District revenue that has been and
will continue to be set aside for this purpose. At this
time, it is expected that users of the system should not
see a change in their debt fee payment attributable to
this expansion.

What is the impact on my taxes if the sewer does
not pass by my property?

The Town’s models show that the TIF revenues and
sewer user fees will be sufficient to pay the debt
service on the bond issue. In other words, we are not
anticipating any mil rate adjustments as a result of this
project.

What will I have to pay as a sewer user?

Your bill will include charges for your actual usage of
the system called the “User Fee”, based on the amount
of water that you use. There is also a section of the
bill called the “Debt Fee” which helps to cover the
payments on current debt. With extending the sewer
line there will be more people contributing to the debt
service fee, which should allow us to decrease the fee
once the project is complete.

What will change if I am a current sewer user?
The debt fee maybe able to be decreased, however
Camden is looking at expensive upgrades to their
treatment plant, which could result in the debt service
fee going up slightly, but with more users paying into
the Debt Service, it should not be a significant
increase.

What if the sewer passes by my property, but | do
not connect?

According to the Town Sewer Ordinance, you will be
required to pay the debt fee, but you will not have any
usage charges. For an average single-family property
this fee is currently about $213 per year.

Am | required to connect to the sewer if it passes
by my property?

If you have a functioning septic system, then you do
not have to connect. If your system fails in the future,
though, you are required to connect, and any new
buildings are required to connect.



Town of Rockpor, ME April 16, 2019

Sea Light Lane to South Street Sewer Extension

Fareta
e

=178 ft

SEA UGHT LN
DOUCETTE, ELMER & PECTY

Sea Light Lane to South Street

along Route 1...

Article 10.

U S Route 1
Sewer Expansion 2019
T

Shall the Town:

(1) Approve the design. site preparation. and construction of a sewer line extension
from Sea Light Lane to South Street along Route 1, including all other expenses
reasonably related thereto (the “Project™);

(2) Appropriate the sum of $4,500,000 as funds for the costs of the Project to be
funded through general obligation bonds; and

(3) Authorize the Select Board to issue, at one time or from time to time, general
obligation securities of the Town of Rockport. Maine. including future refunding
obligations, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,500,000

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Total Town Indebtedness:
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $ 2,147,889
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $ 1,500,000
C. Bonds to be issued if this Article is approved: $ 4,500,000
Total $ 8,147,889

Costs:
At an estimated interest rate of 2% for an estimated 20-vear maturity, the
estimated costs of this bond issue will be:

Principal: $ 4,500,000
Interest: $ 1,004,105
Total Debt Service: $5.504.105

Validity: The validity of the bonds and the voters’ ratification of the bonds may
not be affected by any errors in the above estimates. If the actual amount of the
total debt service for the bond issue varies from the estimate, the ratification by
the electors is nonetheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is not
affected by reason of the variance.

5 M . Town Treasurer

Budget Committee Votes: 7 For. 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND
Select Board Votes: 5 For, 0 Against, 0 Abstain RECOMMEND

Town of Rockport

101 Main St.
Rockport, ME 04856
Phone: 207.236.9648
Fax: 207.230.0112
http://rockport.town.me.us

Town of Rockport

Sewer Extension US
Route 1

Sea Light Lane to South Street

E B T T T

Commercial Street
Sewer Bond Issue

Town Office Phone:
207.236.9648



VOTER INFORMATION FOR THE ROUTE ONE SEWER BOND ISSUE
= === ===

Background
In the 1980s, the Town of Rockport addressed a

serious environmental issue. Many homes and
businesses were discharging their sewage directly
into Penobscot Bay, both into Rockport Harbor and
into Clam Cove. Under state and federal mandates,
the Town constructed a wastewater collection
system (the sewer) in two parts - one to service
Rockport Village and surrounding areas, and
another to service the Glen Cove portion of Town.
Agreements were secured with Camden (for the
Village system) and Rockland (for the Glen Cove
system) to send the collected waste water to their
treatment plants, which meant that Rockport did not
have to construct its own treatment plant.

The construction of the two separate systems was
financed with a combination of state and federal
grants and by borrowing money through bonds that
were to be paid back over a number of years by the
users of the wastewater systems.

More Recent Years

Extensions to the original system to serve Camden
Hills Regional High School and properties along
Commercial Street (Rte. 1) from West St. (Rte. 90)
south to Elwood Ave. were constructed between
1988 and 1989 funded in part by a Tax Increment
Financing District (TIF) established for that
purpose.

As the Comprehensive Plan was developed in 2003-
2004, the issue of expanding the wastewater system
was addressed. One of the highest priorities noted in
the Comprehensive Plan is the linking of the two
wastewater systems by extending the sewer system
along Commercial St. from Elwood Ave (the
southern terminus of the “Village” system) to South
St. (the northern terminus of the Glen Cove system).

In the summer of 2014, the Wastewater
Commissioners undertook engineering and the
feasibility studies for one section of this area, from
Elwood Avenue to Sea Light Lane. We are

now proposing that the Town continue the system
and finish the connection between the Southern and
Northern ends. This extension is now known as the
Sea Light Lane to South Street extension. Our initial
cost estimates state that the project will cost 4.5

million-dollars. Our goal is to get half of the project total
cost funded by State and Federal grants.

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

Why should this project go forward now?

The cost of borrowing money (interest rates) is very low. We
also have large area of land along this stretch that the owners
are looking to develop, continuing the sewer system allows
them to develop these properties and will help increase the
tax base in Town, which in turn will help lessen the burden
on current tax payers.

What are the benefits to the town for this project?

This will be the final step in connecting the Town’s two
separate wastewater systems, which when complete, will
allow the Town much greater flexibility in terms of pumping
wastewater to Camden and Rockland. In the future, should
either of those treatment plants have a reduction in their
ability to accept Rockport’s wastewater; the Town would
then be able to shift more of its wastewater to the other plant.

Also, commercial establishments in this area are currently
unable to grow and employ more people because of the
constraints of their current septic systems. By providing
sewer service to these businesses, they will be able to
continue their operations and perhaps expand. If the
businesses expand, or if new commercial or residential
development occurs in this area, it will increase the tax base
of the Town.

How much will the project cost?
The current estimate is $4.5 million.

How will the project be paid for?

The voters are being asked to approve a bond issue of up to
$4.5 million to pay for the project. This means that the town
will borrow the money, and it will be paid back over a 20-
year period.

In addition, Maine Water is extending their water mains at
the same time the sewer is extended, and they will share
some of the construction costs.

The Town will also be applying for grants tied to businesses
in this part of town either maintaining jobs or creating new
jobs as a result of the sewer extension. These factors make it
possible that the actual amount required to be raised by bonds
will be less than the $4.5 million cost.

How will the bonds be repaid?

It is anticipated that the expansion of the U S Route 1
sewer line will be paid for with the Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) District revenue that has been and
will continue to be set aside for this purpose. At this
time, it is expected that users of the system should not
see a change in their debt fee payment attributable to
this expansion.

What is the impact on my taxes if the sewer does
not pass by my property?

The Town’s models show that the TIF revenues and
sewer user fees will be sufficient to pay the debt
service on the bond issue. In other words, we are not
anticipating any mil rate adjustments as a result of this
project.

What will I have to pay as a sewer user?

Your bill will include charges for your actual usage of
the system called the “User Fee”, based on the amount
of water that you use. There is also a section of the
bill called the “Debt Fee” which helps to cover the
payments on current debt. With extending the sewer
line there will be more people contributing to the debt
service fee, which should allow us to decrease the fee
once the project is complete.

What will change if I am a current sewer user?
The debt fee maybe able to be decreased, however
Camden is looking at expensive upgrades to their
treatment plant, which could result in the debt service
fee going up slightly, but with more users paying into
the Debt Service, it should not be a significant
increase.

What if the sewer passes by my property, but | do
not connect?

According to the Town Sewer Ordinance, you will be
required to pay the debt fee, but you will not have any
usage charges. For an average single-family property
this fee is currently about $213 per year.

Am | required to connect to the sewer if it passes
by my property?

If you have a functioning septic system, then you do
not have to connect. If your system fails in the future,
though, you are required to connect, and any new
buildings are required to connect.



X. Liaison Reports

Mark and Jeff

e 4/9/19 Capital Improvement Plan minutes, included in packet

Mark

e 3/13/19 Conservation Commission Minutes

Jeff

e 3/6/19 Harbor Committee Minutes
e 3/6/19 CR Pathways Committee
e 2/6/19 Recreation Committee

Ken
e 4/15/19 Legacy Rockport Minutes



e RCC Monthly Meeting Minutes
Wednesday 3/13/19
9:30 am - 12:30 pm
Rockport Town Office

Attending: Fred Ribeck, Marci Casas, Kim Kimball, Lora Laffan, Meggan Dwyer
Bill Napier, Hannah Sisk,
Roll Call and determination of a quorum - 5/7 people attending

Minutes:

e Approved minutes from 2/6 unanimously. Will be posted to website

Updates:

e DMR sampling in Clam Cove -

o

o O O

DMR will do a resource study in the spring to determine whether there are clams
Need to address sampling in the outer harbor for aquaculture use

Need to know history of the closure and shellfish committee

New information states the RCC was the Shellfish Conservation Committee

e Canopy Tree Grant update with Bill N and Hannah Sisk

o

o O O O O

Bill and Hannah have a grant application pending.

Must Pre-identify sites before submission

Meet 3/14 to targeting businesses along Rt 17, old county Rd and rt 1

Must be 15’-20’ trees such as magnolias due to lines

Businesses pay for tree and volunteers plant trees

The RCC has not budgeted contributing funds to the Canopy Grant for 2019-20
so this is outside the RCC for financial purposes at this time

e RCC, Garden Club, Aldermere Tree Program

Birch, oak and maple planted at Aldermere Farm with Grant and Tax payer
Monies from 2015 - Present

There is an application in the town office and this opportunity has been
advertised

Need to put the application on TOR website and Social Media-

The current program is Not associated with the new Tree Canopy Grant. It does
not follow federal restrictions. All signs show that there is not support for the
current Rockport Tree Program that was established in 2015. The Trees on
Erickson Farm are a seperate program. These trees are intended to be free to
residents who are willing to care and maintain them. This program will continue
on its its own by private funding going forward if the committee does not support
the $500 investment in purchasing trees each year.

Applications can be for businesses, schools, parks or land owners in Rockport
The RCC current tree program does not have support from the committee so the
suggested path forward is to continue purchasing trees to raise on Erickson



Farm. These trees take 6 years to grow to 4 inch diameters. Reuvisit the offering
to residents further down the line.
Kim has started Rockport Ocean Club a Youth Education Outreach-Surfrider Chapter
based at RBC
o  Will work with middle school, high school and boat club kids on ocean issues
such as beach clean up, Citizen Scientist Monitoring , secchi disk training, harbor
action awareness, storm drains and harbor sampling.
o 1st surfrider club in Maine
o Surfrider provides educational materials
o Kim Kimball is funding out of pocket
Balsam Fir Project-Kim
o Paying out of pocket for any Rockport resident that would like to grow a balsam
fir tree in their yard, targeting village residents and yards without tree growth or
forests. In honor of the 200th Celebration of the Pine Tree State. These trees will
remain in Rockport residents yards
Annual Report submitted on 2/15
Kim will get everyone a copy to review and perhaps add bios if not yet printed
If you would like to submit a bio of your work, please do asap

Discussions:
Goose River Temp Logger Opportunity with Fish and Wildlife
o New Strategy around water quality to make clear goals and priorities
o Ask Bob K to attend to strategize around Monitoring plan and goals
PC is a subcommittee of RCC (Role is Education and Advising)
o Possible Members (bold are confirmed)
o Does the RCC Chair have to Chair this Committee?
o
Keith Rose,
Sandra Fabien (Garden Club)
Kim Kimball (RCC)
Craig Mitchell,
Fred Ribeck (RCC)
Susanne Johndrow (Parks and Rec)
Aaron England,
Paul McFarland,
Hildy Ellis,
m Evan Frace
o Pesticide Committee Meeting to be determined in the Spring
Plastic Bag Ban
o Need education on topic
o Role of RCC is Education and policy recommendation
o Need to see Statewise Bill to see how it works with town bill


https://www.surfrider.org/#
https://www.surfrider.org/#

o

Drop this until further research is done

Governance Document Review

o O O O O O

Need to make comments and discuss at next meeting

How long should the term be for Chair, Vice, Treasurer and Secretary?

A quorum is 4 members. If 4 members do not show. Meetings will be cancelled.
Town does not accept call in or video as a member being present

In the case the Secretary can not be present, any member can take minutes

A roll call will be sent out a week before meeting. All members should state their
attendance in good faith to support this Committee

Amend to add KRB and Easements as sub committees. To keep Maggie and
Ted associated but not committed to monthly meetings.

Fill the alternate positions

Need for updates to procedures (purchasing, equipment, etc) to be added as
appendices

Need to vote on Vice Chair - Fred has offered to step in as Vice Chair until July
1st elections

All positions will be voted on July 1st, 2019 - Chair, Vice, Treasurer & Secretary
2019 Budget Remaining

$1,500 goes to tree program to plant this spring -$250 has been spent on trees
so far. The rest is for hiring a contractor per Mike Young to transplant the 6 trees
available.

The rest of the budget ($2,500) can be used for monitoring program and well
water testing (Kim has Bob requests)

Educational Program around well water testing and safe drinking water

o

o

Group needs to decide whether to expand parameters and do another round of
testing before June budget runs out.
~1200 residents have wells

Polystyrene Dock Ban

o

o

Harbor Committee has established an ordinance which begins 7/1- All new
construction will be encapsulated
Need to do list from Peter Ralston, Harbor and Conservation Meeting
Need for public forum to address broader issues of polystyrene material ban such
as:

m does this encompass lakes?

m  Who enforces?

m  What is the best replacement materials and BMP around grandfathered

docks?

Discussion needs to be continued outside RCC

Emerald Ash Borer Forum - Moved to next meeting for discussion



Digital Coast Training Offerings - People are interested MD will send agendas and
details
Storm Surge Project - Pushed to discussion of full monitoring program strategy

Action Items:

Kim will give minutes and agendas to Diane and ask for tree application to be placed on
TOR site

Kim will contact selectboard to discuss Shellfish Ordinance and Committee and remove
bag ban item at 4/8 meeting

Meggan will contact Digital Coast for Details on trainings in Rockport

Kim will extend Social Media administration to Lara

Kim will get Bob’s budget needs for monitoring program

Kim will convene Pesticide Committee

Kim will send copy of annual report

Kim will reach out to selectboard re: public hearing on polystyrene dock ban
Fred will research polystyrene encapsulation

Adjournment: 12:15

Dates of Note:
UMaine Sustainability and Water Conference: March 28th

Roadside Clean-up: April 26th & 27th
MEACC Annual Meeting: April 27th
Torch Training at DMC: April 27th



https://umaine.edu/mitchellcenter/2019-conference/
https://umaine.edu/mitchellcenter/2019-conference/
https://www.damariscottariver.org/event/torch-data-workshop/

Harbor Committee Minutes
March 6, 2019 at 5:15 p.m.

Richardson Room Town Office

Abbie Leonard Sam Temple Peter Ralston
Scott Whitcom Cheryl Liechty Parker Hackett

1. New Business:

a. Discussion of Ordinance modifications:
1. Section 202 to add a new definition for resident
2. Section 503.1 to revise the requirements for moorings
3. Section 507 to add winter mooring specifications
4. Section 601.9 to establish requirements for encapsulated polystyrene floatation
Peter motioned to accept amended ordinance changes 5-0 vote.
b. Discuss Park Rental fees.
1. The committee reviewed the application and revised fees, and language. Amended
form will be presented at the next meeting to approve and then go to the Select

Board for approval.

2. Other Business:
3. Harbormaster’s report
4. Approval of Minutes:

a. Cheryl motioned to approved January 31, 2019 minutes. 5-0 vote
5. Next Meeting:

a. The next meeting will be Thursday, April 25, 2019 at 5:15 p.m.
6. Adjourn:

a. The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m.



Camden Rockport Bicycle and Pedestrian Pathways Committee
Minutes
Mar 6, 2019 — Camden Town Office
7:00 pm

Present(the cool kids):

Geoff Scott (minutes) — Camden

Robert Davis -Camden

Owen Casas — Rockport

Lynda Clancy — Rockport

Helen Shaw — Rockport

Margo Murphy — Rockport

Jenna Lookner — Camden Select Board Liaison

Absent(probably on a warm vacation):
Leni Gronros — Rockport

Anita Brosius-Scott - Camden

Jane Self - Camden

Andrew Stancioff — Camden

Richard Stetson — Camden

Guests:

Feb Minutes:
The minutes were accepted as written.

Route 1 by Maritime Farms:

Rockport Select Board approved to put $25K in the budget recommended to the budget
committee. That, in addition to the $37K already in the restricted fund for this project should
cover the towns portion of the higher construction costs anticipated. Geoff to suggest to Audra
that she send a memo to Rick Bates detailing the status of the project and outlining the estimated
higher costs. That way Rick will have the memo to reference during budget committee meetings.

Riverwalk — Knowlton Section

Discussed no-construction period from Apr 1 to Aug 15 to avoid impacting any nesting herons.
There are two issues. One, there remains the question whether there are any nesting herons. And
two, if we wait until Aug 15", we’ll miss the opportunity to participate in the next round of RTP
grants. Action — Geoff to ask Audra if the town would be open to hiring an ornithologist to do a
survey and report on what they observe to Maine Inland Fisheries and Wildlife. Action — Geoff
to send Margo letter from MIFW including the map they sent. Action — Margo will see how
much professional ornithologist Mark DiGirolamo would charge. Action — Geoff to ask MIFW
if they can recommend any ornithologist in our area.

Route 90 — at Forest Glen

Does it make sense that the crossing should be at Forest Glen or maybe at Cross St? Maybe we
can do both if we can get the classification of Rte 90 changed at the State level? For further
discussion.

Bike Awareness
Establishing a more bike friendly community is part of our charter. It makes good economic
sense by improving the bikeability of our communities and thereby improving the quality of life.



There is growing concern in our community and around the country around bicycle safety. Since
2009 there have been an increasing number of bicycle injuries nationwide. If we had bike lanes
around our towns it would transform kids lives (Margo). Maybe we should put together a
Summit to encourage community partnerships to work on this issue.

Rockport Sewer Line extension

Should meet with Bill Najpauer to discuss adding bike/ped facilities to the sewer extension
construction project on Rte 1.Action — Lynda and Helen will set up meeting with Bill. Perhaps
an alternative strategy would be to add wording into ordinances about consideration for bike/ped
facilities when constructing roads. For further consideration and discussion.

Meeting adjourned at 9pm
Next meeting April 3, Rockport



ROCKPORT RECREATION COMMITTEE

February 6,2019
9:00AM
Midcoast Recreation Center

ATTENDANCE:
Committee Members- Suzanne Johndro, Craig Wilson, Barrett Brown
Others- John Novak, Megan Day, Brian Fitzpatrick

Approve Oct. 2018 Meeting Minutes
Craig motions to approve minutes from Oct. 18, Barrett seconds, approved
unanimously.

Review Bylaws created April 2017
Barrett motions to approve bylaws, Craig seconds, approved unanimously.

Elect Officers
Barrett motions to postpone officer elections until the April meeting, Craig
second, approved unanimously.

Update on Field Scheduling Software
Brandy Hare from Public Works emailed an update:

"After doing a bunch of research and going through demos.. | narrowed it
down to two companies, RecField and EZ Facilities. Both are comparable in
pricing at about $1200 a year- but RecDesk has some set up fees that the
other doesn't.

| did put that money in the budget we submitted to the Town Manager, in
hopes of getting it approved. -Brandy”

Committee recommends the schedule is view only to the public, that the
scheduling is managed by Brandy or another designated town employee.
The committee will create a list of organizations that have historically used
the fields and suggests they are given priority.

Marge Jones Update

(John Novak)-Last summer and fall Infields were raked and weeded and are
looking better. There is currently infield mix at MJ, we will need mound clay
and Turface® for the spring. Babe Ruth outfield needs irrigation to help the




seed take root. Joh will contact Mike Young (Public Works) with a punch list
for opening the fields.

Little League dates are not determine yet, but Barrett informed us they
usually have inside practices through the week after April Break, trying to
get on the field as soon as they are ready and first games April 29. LL will
be organizing a field clean up day again as they did the last two years.

Suzanne will talk to Matt Smith (Ass. Principal at CRMS) about getting $ and
time from their field maintenance budget to be used at Marge Jones, as
they will be using the fields for middle school baseball and softball. Ask

Suzanne will ask Mike about budget for a town equipment shed at Marge
Jones to house facility equipment.

Review Budget
No budget information. Craig will ask Jeff Hamilton (Selectman and liaison
to the committee) about the budget.

Discuss Recreation Opportunities

Pickleball is a growing sport, MRC is considering outdoor pickle ball courts
and will bring a proposal to the committee to consider recommending
town involvement.

Consider recommending a brochure to promote recreation, maybe
combine with Camden Parks and Rec. Possible options, combine with
Rockport Parks, and Pathways committee, chamber of commerce, various
land trusts, etc.. Add to agenda next month.

New Business
RES East Field: Barrett (and Brian) will tell LL they need a shed of some sort
to put equipment in.

Suggestions for Annual Review Writeup
Include a thank you to John Novak, clean up day with over 50 attendants,
eagles scout project.




Approve Future Meeting Date, Time and Location
March 6, 2019

9:00AM

MRC

Adjourn
10:20



Meeting of Directors
Legacy Rockport
April 15, 2019

A meeting of the Board of Directors of Legacy Rockport (LR) was held at the Town Office on,
Monday, April 15, 2019 at 4:07pm. Present were: Lynda Clancy, Dave Jackson, Ken McKinley,
Maggie Timmerman, and Richard Remsen. Bill Chapman was absent.

The following items were discussed:

1

7

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, it was unanimously VOTED to approve the
board meeting minutes of March 18, 2019 with Charlton and Richard abstaining.

In lieu of a Treasurer’s Report, Charlton circulated a sample of LR stationery which he is
using to send out donor tax letters.

Maggie led a discussion of a Road Clean-up project for Rockport on April 26™ and 27 as
well as a countywide Route 1 “Relay” Clean-up which will be held on May3rd and May
4%, She and Marci Casas are requesting that LR act as a pass-through for donations to
support both clean-ups. It was agreed that the projects might not fit the mission of LR
and that the board needs to clarify as well as better define the LR mission at a later
meeting. However, there was a consensus to support Marci’s current request because
the projects are so worthwhile.

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, it was unanimously VOTED to approve that
Legacy Rockport act as a pass-through for donations to the upcoming Rockport and
Route 1 clean-up projects.

It was agreed to review the LR by-laws to determine what, if any, actions the board can
take by e-mail. Amendments to the by-laws may be considered.

Maggie reviewed the upcoming Bridge Dinner status. It was agreed to hold a workshop
for the project, in lieu of the next LR board meeting, on Thursday, May 9th, at 4:00pm.
Salutations were completed for the LR master donor list.

There being no further business, it was unanimously voted to adjourn at 5:04pm, a true record
dated as of April 18, 2019.

Attest:

Charlton Ames



	Agenda
	I. Call Meeting to Order
	II. Public Hearing
	Notice of Public Hearing
	Public Hearing

	Manager’s Comments - Article 3
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	Manager’s Comments - Article 4
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	Manager’s Comments - Article 5
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	Manager’s Comments - Article 6
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	Manager’s Comments - Article 7
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	Manager’s Comments - Article 8
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	Manager’s Comments - Article 9
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	Manager’s Comments - Article 10
	Suggested motion
	Suggested motion
	III. Minutes, Meetings and Announcements
	TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2019
	TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2019

	V. Town Manager’s Update
	The manager’s update will be delivered verbally at the meeting

	VI. Consent Agenda
	a. None this meeting

	VII. Unfinished Business
	a. Policy discussion on allocating indirect costs to capital projects
	Manager’s Comments:
	Capital projects



	VIII. New Business
	a. Committee Application
	None this meeting


	b. Sign copies of the Annual Town Meeting Warrant
	Manager’s Comments:
	WARRANT


	c. Vote to sign the Budget Validation Referendum
	Manager’s Comments:
	Referendum


	d. Discussion regarding an infrastructure bond
	Manager’s Comments:
	CIP Minutes
	CIP Meeting Follow-up
	Capital Improvement Projects
	Timeline for Infrastructure Bond


	e. Discussion regarding possible workshop dealing with the future of the RES
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested motion –

	f. Consideration of the Rockport Public Library bidding process
	Manager’s Comments:
	Bid Results

	IX. Wastewater Commissioners
	a. Approve information mailing and letters for sewer extension project
	Direct Mail
	Brochure


	X. Liaison Reports
	03/13/19 Conservation Commission
	03/06/19 Harbor
	03/06/19 CR Pathways
	02/06/19 Recreation
	04/15/19 Legacy Rockport

	XI. Executive Session
	a. Discussion of a Personnel Matter

	XII. Adjournment



